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UNITED STATES OF A~ERICA C.~SE NO. CR-3-98-73 

V. 

CONTROL -SYSTEMS SPECIALIST, INC.: 
AND DARROLD RICHARD CRITES 

PLEA "_GREEMENT 

1. In compliance with Rule 11(e) (2) of the Fede~al Rules 

of Criminal Procedure, the ·parties ac~~owledge the fol~owing 

agreement between the United States of America, by and through 

the United States Attorney's Office for the Southern District of 

Ohio and the Fraud Section, Criminal Division, U. S. Department 

of Justice, and the defendant, DARROLD RICHARD CRITES and the 

defendant's attorney, David Williamson, Esq. Pursuant to plea 

negotiations herein, the Department of Justice and the defendant, 

DAR...~OLD RICP'..ARD CRITES, have mutually examined the relative 

merits of the above case and have agreed to resolve the case 

according to the te~s and conditions contained in this Plea 

Agreement. 

\ 
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I. NEGOTIATED PLEA 

2. The defendant, D1L~OLD RICHARD CRITES, will waive 

-
formal indictment and enter a plea of guilty to a three count 

information charging, in Count One, a violation of IS U.S.C. § 

371, conspiracy to violate 15 U.S.C. § 7Sdd-2, known as the 

Foreign Corrupt Practices Act; in Count Two, a violation of 15 

U.S.C. § 7Sdd-2; and in Count Three, a violation of IS U.S.C. § 

201 (c) . The defendant admits that he is guilty of these offenses 

and agrees to so advise the Court. The Department of Justice 

agrees to not charge the defendant with any other crimes that 

arise out of the same facts as contained in the attached 

Statement of Facts. 

PENALTY 

3. The defendant lL~derstands and agrees that the statutory 

maximum sentence for the counts to which he is pleading guilty 

are as follows: 

(i) for the violations of 18 U.S.C. § 371 and 15 U.S.C. 

§ 7Sdd-2, a term of imprisonment not more than five 

years, followed by a term of ~upervised release of not 

more than three years; a fine of not more than $250,000 

or not mere than two times the gross pecuniary gain 
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realized by the defendant from the offense, whichever 

is greater; and 

(ii) for the violation of 18 U.S.C. § 201(c), a term of 

-
imprisonment of not more than two years, followed by a 

term of supervised release of not more than one year, 

or a fine of not more than $250,000 or not more than 

two times the gross pectL~iary gain realized by the 

defendant from the offense, whichever is greater, or 

both. 

In addition, pursua~t to 18 U.S.C. § 3013(a) (2) (A), the defendant 

is obligated to pay a speclal assessment of $50.00 for Counts 1 

and 2 and $100.00 for Count 3. 

4. The defe~dant understands that the length of a prison 

te~, ~~ any, and t2e amount of a ~~ne and restitution, if any, 

are matters · ... h· Wl. L...I. l.TI discretion of the Court. The 

defendant understands that his sentence will be decided by the 

Court and that neit2er the gover~ment nor his attorney can 

prea~ct what his , . -.... " sentence Wl~~ ce. 

III. RESTITUTION 

5. Pursuant ~o 18 U.S.C. § 3663 (a) (3), the defendant 

agrees to pay complete restitution for all damage that resulted 

from his violations of the statutes listed in Section I herein. 
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The restitution amount will be determined by the Court with the 

assistance of the Probation Office, and it is not limited solely 

to the damage encompassed in Counts 1-3 of the information. 

IV. COOPERATION 

A. The Defendant's Obliaations 

6. The defendant agrees to disclose completely and 

truthfully all information regarding his activities and that of 

others in all matters about which he has knowledge or hereafter 

acquires knowledge and concerning any matter about which the 

government may inquire. The defendant agrees to accompany agents 

of the United States to any location to accomplish that purpose. 

?urther, the defendant agrees to appear and to testify t~uthfully 

before the Grand Ju~£ and at any trial or oLner court proceeding 

upon resuest of the government. The defendant agrees to answer 

all questions complecely and truthfully and must not withhold any 

information. 

7. The defendant agrees not to attempt to protect any 

person or entity throegh false information or omission, or to 

falsely implicate any perscn or entity. The defendant must not 

ccmmit any crimes whatsoever. The defendant agrees to furnish 

any documents in the defendant's custody or possession or lli~der 

;.-' l-ne defendant's control that are relevant to the investigation. 
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The defendant agrees to make himself available for interviews by 

attorneys and law enforcement officers of the United States upon 

request and reasonable notice and assist them in any manner 

requested of the defendant. If called to testify, the defendant 

agrees to give complete, truthful, and accurate information and 

testimony. The defendant's obligation to cooperate commences 

with the defendant's signing of this plea agreement. 

B. The Government's Obliaations 

8. In exchanse for the defendant's plea of guil~y and 

agreement to cooperate as set forth above, the united States 

agrees not to prosecute the defendant for any violations of 

federal law in cor~ection with same fac~s giving r~se to this 

plea, othe~ than as set for~n ~~ section If above. T~is 

agyeement to forego fur~he~ p=osecution extends to c=iminal 

c~arges arising out of any violations of the Internal Revenue 

Code for tax years :993-1996 that could be brought by the 

Internal Revenue Se~vice, U.S. D~ar~ment of the Treasury, or the 

Tax Division of the U.S. Depar~ment of Jus~ice, that relate to 

~~e same facts giving rise to t~is plea. This agreement does not 

l~mit in any way the right or ability of ~. 

~ne United States to 

investigate or prosecute crimes which are not related to CSS 

Corporation or any of its subsidiaries. 
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9. If the defendant fully complies with all the terms and 

conditions of this agreement and the Department of Justice 

concludes, in its sole discretion, that the defendant has 

provided substantial assis~ance in the investigation or 

prosecution of one or more other persons who have committed an 

offense, the Department of Justice shall file a motion for a 

downward departure pursuant to Section SK1.l of the Sentencing 

Guidelines or Rule 3S(b) of the Federal Rules of Criminal 

?rocedure, reflecting that the defendant has provided substantial 

assistance to the United States. The defendant acknow~edges and 

agrees, however, that nothing in this agreement may be construed 

~o require the Department of uustice to file such a motion. ..,..,' ..Lne 

Depar~~ent of Justice rese~Jes the right to evaluate t~e nature 

and ex~ent of the defendant's cooceration and to make the 

defendant'S cooperation, or lack thereof, known to the Court at 

~ne time of sentencing but the gcvernment's recommendation will 

not be based UDon t~e outcome of ~ny trial in this matter. The 

defendant and his attorney are ~ree to make a recommendation to 

the concerning an appropriate sentence at time of 

sentencing. The defendant unders~ands, . however , that the 

ultimate sentence to be imposed :.n this matter rests exclusively 

wl~n:.n the discretion of the Court. 
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V. THE COURT NOT BOUND BY PLEA AGREEMENT 

10. In determining the fact~al basis for the sentence, the 

Court will consider this agreement, together with the results of 

the presentence investigation and any other relevant information, 

subject to the limitations in Sentencing Guideline §lB1.8(a). 

The defendant understands that the Court is not bound to follow 

the recommendations of the United States. If the Courc declines 

to sentence the defendant as recommended by the United States, 

the defendant ca~~~ot, for that reason alone, withdraw his guilty 

plea. 

11. The defendant unde1:'stands that neithe1:' the United 

States, his la'NYe1:', nor the Cou:::::-t can make a binding Drediction 

of, or promise him, the guideline 1:'ange or sentence that 

~ltimately will apply to his case. The defendant agrees that no 

one has made such a binding p1:'ediction or promise. 

12. The defendant unde1:'stands that a sentencing guideline 

range =or this case will be dete~ined by the Court pursuant to 

the Sentencing Refo~ Act, 18 U.S.C. §§ 3551-3742 and 28 U.S.C. 

§§ 991-998. Ee fu:::::-che1:' ~~de1:'stands that the Cou:::::-t will impose a 

sentence within that range unless the CqU1:'t finds that there is a 

basis for departu1:'e because aggravating or mitigating 

circumstances exist which we1:'e not adequately taken into 

7 



consideration when the Guidelines were formulated and which 

should result in a sentence different from the Guideline range. 

13. The defendant ~~derstands that there is no agreement 

as to his criminal history or criminal history category, and that 

his criminal history could alter his offense level if he is a 

career offender or if the instant offense was part of a pattern 

of criminal conduct from which he derived a substantial portion 

of his income. 

VI. LIMITS OF AGREEMENT 

14. This agreement is bindi~g only on the Fraud Section of 

the United States Department of ~ustice, the United States 

.~ttorr..ey for the Southern Distric:: of Ohio, and the Tax. Division 

of the United States Departmenc of Justice and the Internal 

?.evenue Ser-l"ice as delineated in paragraph 8 of this agreement. 

It does not bind any United States Attorney outside the Southern 

District of Ohio, nor does it bind any stace or local prosecuting 

authority. 

VII. TAXES 

15. The defendant also agrees to file within 90 days true 

and correct tax returns, if necessar-J, for any taxable year 

affected by the offenses alleged in the information and to pay 

for all taxes, interest, and penalties for those years within a 
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reasonable time to be agreed upon with the Internal Revenue 

Service. 

16. The defendant also agrees to make all books, records, 

and documents available -to the Internal Revenue Service for use 

in computing the defendant's taxes, interest, and penalties for 

any taxable year. This does not waive any right the United 

States has to prosecute the defendant for violations of the 

federal tax laws. 

VIII. BREACH OF AGREEMENT 

17. If the defendant has failed or should fail in any way 

to fulfill completely any of his obligations under this 

agreement, United States will be released 

commit~ent to honor all of ~~s cb~igations to him. Specifically, 

che United Staces wi::"l be ::ree to; 

a_ Prosecute che defendant for perjury, false declaration, 
false statement and/or obstruction of justice; 

D. Charge him with any offense including all crimes in 
co~~ection with CSS In~., that he has committed; 

c. Use agains~ him in all of those prosecutions the 
information and/or documents that he himself has 
disclosed during the course of his cooperation 
including all statemencs given under the proffer 
agreement or any ocher sL.atem~nt the defendant may make 
in discussions which are covered under Rule 11(e) (6) . 
The defendant agrees co expressly waive objeccion to 
the use of any such statements, testimony or 
information to which the defendant may othe~~ise be 
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entitled to object in any federal prosecution, now or 
at any time in the future; 

d. Recommend to the Court any sentence up to and including 
the maximum possible sentence; 

e. Refrain from making any motion for a downward departure 
for substantial assistance. 

18-. Since the defendant's acceptance of this agreement 

terminates all plea discussions with the United States, any 

statements made by the defendant after the date of the 

defendant's accepcance of this agreement a~o not gove=ned by Rule 

11(e) (6) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure and Rule 410 

of the Federal Rules of Evidence. 

19. Whether or not the defendant has violated t~e terms of 

this agreement sha:: be dete~ined by the united States in its 

sole discretion. any hearing on the issue of 
, . nreaC:l, the 

defendant's disclosures and documents will be admissible, and the 

united States will be requlrea establish the breach by a 

preponderance of the evidence. 

IX. NO IMMUNITY FOR PERJURY 

20. Nothing in this agreement shall be construed to protece 

the defendant from prosecution for Perj4ry, or Making False 

Declarations or False Statements, in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 

1621, 1623, or 1001; Obstruceion of Justice, in violation of 18 
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U.S.C. §§ 1503, 1505, 1510, or 1512; or any other offense 

committed after the date of this agreement. The information and 

documents that the defendant discloses to the United States 

pursuant to this agreement may be used against him in any such 

prosecution. 

21. During his plea, the Court may ask the defendant to 

answer questions about the offense to which he pleads, and the 

facts contained in any stipulation which he has made with the 

United States. If he answers those questions untruthfully, his 

answers may later be used against him in a prosecution for 

Perjury or False Statement. 

X. WAIVER OF APPEAL 

22. The defer.cant is aware that Title 18, United States 

Coce, Section 3742 gives the ce£endant a right to appeal the 

sentence imposec. Acknowlecsins this, the defendant ~lowingly 

waives the right to appeal all matters pertaining to this case 

and any sentence imposed by the Court. The defendant does, 

however, retain the right to appeal an upward departure from the 

Sentencing Guideline Ranse. 

XI . ACXNOWLEDGMENT 

23. The undersigned defendant, D)L~~OLD RICR~ CRITES, 

ac~~owledges by his signature below that he has read this Plea 

Agreement, that he understands t~e terms.and conditions and the 

factual basis as set forth herein, that he has discussed these 
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matters with his attorney, and that the matters set forth in this 

Plea Agreement, including those facts which support his plea of 

guilty, are true and correct. 

24. The undersignea defendant, his attorney, and the 

attorneys for the United States of America acknowledge that this 

Plea Agreement is the entire agreement negotiated by and agreed 

to by and between the parties, and that no other promise has been 

made or implied by either the defendant, his attorney, or the 

attorneys for the United States of F~erica. 

F-PP:;(OVED: 

Respectful~y submicted, 

SF-ZL.-q,ON J. ZE..1l..L2Y 

United States Atto~ey 

?raud Section, Criminal Division 
United States Department of Justice 

Richard Chema 
Ass~s~ant United States Attorney 

r~~~ter 3. Clark, Deputy Chief 

::or .. ,..,' lJav:.a A: ~ycee 
Trial Attorney 
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I have read this agreement and have carefully reviewed every 
part of it with my attorney. I understand it, and I voluntarily 
agree to it. No other promises or inducements have been made to 
me other than those contained in this agreement. No one has 
threatened me or forced me in any way to enter into this 
agreement. I am fully satisfied with the representation I have 
received from my attorney. 

DATE: 
7 J 

D~.TE : 
I I 

D~~~~OLD RICF~ CRITES 
Defendant 

David Williamson 
Counsel for Defendant 
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